
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




15. O-24-2023 3YM2379-Pond Ordinance  
0721231302  1 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Creating Section 58-14 of the Stoughton Municipal Code, relating to the prohibition of fishing in City 


owned storm water ponds that use mechanical aeration devices. 


Committee Action:    Public Works Committee recommends approval  - 5 - 0 
Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O - 24 - 2023 Date Introduced:  July 25, 2023 
August 8, 2023 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 


1. Section 58-14 of the Stoughton Municipal Code is created to read as follows: 
 


Sec. 58-14. – Prohibition of Fishing in City Owned Storm Water Ponds.  
 


No person shall fish, as defined by Wis. Stat. § 29.001(27), in any City owned storm 
water pond that uses aeration equipment, decorative fountains, or similar devices.  


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


 
Dates 


 
Council Adopted:   


 
Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:    


 
Attest:              
        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 







           
           
           
           
           
           
           


             
             


Date: July 13, 2023    
 
To: City of Stoughton Alders 
  
From: Brett Hebert  
  
Subject: Storm Water Pond Aerators  
 
 
Dear Alders, 
 
 
Recently, an aerator at the Eastwood Pond was damaged to the point where it needs to be 
replaced.  The technician discovered that there was fishing line that got intertwined in the shaft 
of the aerator propeller that led to a seal failure allowing water into the aerator housing causing 
a motor failure.  This is not the first time that we have had issues with fishing line in one of our 
aerators. 
 
To protect City infrastructure, I would like to propose language that would forbid fishing in 
ponds that have mechanical devices placed in them for water quality purposes.  The proposed 
language, under Chapter 58 – Public Nuisances, would read: 
 


Sec. 58-14. – Prohibition of Fishing in City Owned Storm Water Ponds.  
 


No person shall fish, as defined by Wis. Stat. § 29.001(27), in any City owned storm water pond 
that uses aeration equipment, decorative fountains, or similar devices 


Sec. 58-3. - Penalty. 


Any person who shall violate any provision of this chapter or permit or cause a public 
nuisance shall be subject to a forfeiture as provided in section 1-3. 


(Code 1986, § 10.08; Ord. No. 0-2-2022, § 1, 2-8-2022) 


 
Essentially, this would impact the Eastwood Pond and the Rotary Park Pond.  Please let me 
know your thoughts on this proposed ordinance language. 
 
Regards, 
 
Brett Hebert 
Director of Public Works  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
2439 County Rd A, Stoughton, WI  53589 
(608) 877-8684   Office 
 


BRETT HEBERT 
Director of Public Works 
BHebert@cityofstoughton.com 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH1GEPR_S1-3PEPR





 


                     
 
 


             





		15. O-24-2023 3YM2379-Pond Ordinance

		15a Pond Aerators and Fishing Memo






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Affirm City of Stoughton payment of Minnesota Life basic life insurance premiums for all 
covered employees 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval ____ on 08/08/2023 
TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


Fiscal Impact:   Approximately $18,000 per year 


File Number: R-125-2023 Date: 08/08/23 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has been participating in the Local Group Life 
Insurance Program administered by the State of Wisconsin Department of Trust Funds (ETF) for 
many years; and, 


WHEREAS, past practice for at least the last three decades has been that the City of 
Stoughton pays the basic life insurance premium amount for each covered employee; and, 


WHEREAS, ETF’s Wisconsin Public Employers Group Life Insurance Program 
Administration Manual (ET-1117 REV 6/20/2023) allows for an employer to pay the basic life 
insurance premium for covered employees as long as the Employer Resolution to Pay Entire 
Premium (ET-1301 REV 4/29/2019) is on file with ETF; and, 


WHEREAS, ETF has recently confirmed that the City of Stoughton does not have Form 
ET-1301 on file with ETF; and, 


WHEREAS, management has suggested that this employee benefit should be continued; 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Human Resources & Risk 
Management Director is hereby authorized to sign the attached Employer Resolution to Pay Entire 
Premium (ET-1301 REV 4/29/2019) form and forward the signed form to the State of Wisconsin 
Department of Employee Trust Funds; and, 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the effective date of this approval to pay the basic 
insurance premiums of covered employees shall be August 8, 2023. 


Fiscal note:  Life insurance premium amounts are a function of wages (rounded up to the nearest 
thousand) as well as age of the employee.  Based upon the August 2023 billing statement from 
Minnesota Life, twelve months of premiums would be $17,683.  The city would still be required to 
pay the additional 20% of the basic premium amount to fund vesting of vesting of benefits at age 
65, which is not included in the fiscal impact.   







 


 


     It should be pointed out this resolution is a continuation of a currently existing benefit so will 
not be an increase of cost to the city.  As a point of information, the 2023 adopted budget was 
created not knowing of this past practice, so there will be a slight tax levy impact in the creation 
of the 2024 budget. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







ET-1301 (REV 4/29/2019) *ET-1301* Page 1 of 1 


Employer Resolution  
to Pay Entire Premium 


Employer resolution to pay entire premium for (check box(es)): 
  Basic Group Life Insurance (1x earnings) 
  Supplemental Group Life Insurance (1x earnings) 
  Additional Group Life Insurance 


  1 Unit (1x earnings) 
  2 Units (2x earnings) 
  3 Units (3x earnings) 


  Spouse and Dependent Group Life Insurance 


Your resolution will take effect either on the first of the month following the date your resolution is received 
by ETF, or the first day of the second month following the date your resolution is received by ETF. 
Premiums will be due beginning on the effective date that you elect.  


I elect to pay the entire premium beginning (check one box): 
  On the effective date of my resolution.  
  On the first of the next month following the effective date of my resolution. 


I hereby certify that pursuant to Wis. Stat. 40.05 (6)(e), a resolution to pay the entire group life insurance 


premium for all employees for the plan(s) indicated above was duly made by the 


___________________________________________________________________________  
(Governing body) 


of the ______________________________________________________________________ 
(Employer name) 


Employer Identification Number (EIN):   69-036-


on ____________________________. 
  (Date action taken) 


I understand that Wis. Stat. 943.395 provides criminal penalties for knowingly making false or fraudulent 
statements on this form and hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information is 
true and correct. 


Agent Signature Title Date (MM/DD/YYYY) 


Submit completed form to ETF at ETFSMBESSNewEmployer@etf.wi.gov or fax to 608-267-4549. 


For ETF use only: Effective date of coverage entered by ETF: 


Wisconsin Department 
of Employee Trust Funds 
PO Box 7931 
Madison WI 53707-7931 
1-877-533-5020 (toll free)
Fax 608-267-4549
etf.wi.gov


X


X


Common Council


City of Stoughton


August 8, 2023


Human Resources & Risk 
Management Director 08/08/2023







Page 20 of 80 Back to Top 


Chapter 5:  
Cost of Insurance 


 


Cost to Employee 
Monthly premiums are determined as of April 1 of each year for state employees and as 
of July 1 of each year for local government employees, and are based on the employee’s 
age on that date and the amount of insurance. Current Life Insurance Rates (ET-2164) 
are subject to change annually. 
 
Monthly premiums are payroll deducted by the employer from the earnings of each 
insured active employee.  
 
Both employee and employer may agree to a deduction schedule in which premiums are 
paid in advance for several months at a time (for example, if the employee is off work over 
the summer, or is a substitute teacher with uncertain work hours). 
 
Premiums are due for each month during which group coverage is in force beginning on 
the first day of the month following thirty (30) days after the date of hire. When an insured 
retiree turns age sixty-five (65) no premiums will be deducted from the insured’s annuity. 
For employees who retire between age sixty-five (65) and age sixty-nine (69) when they 
retire, the last premium is due for the month in which they retire.  


When an active employee reaches age seventy (70): 
Premiums for Basic, Supplemental, and Spouse & Dependent coverage are due only 
through the month prior to the month in which the employee turns age seventy (70).The 
employee’s Basic coverage will continue at the final reduced amount with no further 
premiums due. Additional coverage continues and premiums are due until the employee 
terminates employment, cancels coverage or stops paying premium.  
 
Refunding Excess Premiums 
In the event an excess deduction of employee premium has been taken for any reason, 
premiums must be refunded to the employee. If the employee has already received his or 
her final paycheck after termination of employment, the employer who made the excess 
deduction is responsible for issuing a refund to the employee.  
 
Cost to Employer 
Wis. Stat. § 40.05 (6) (e), requires that each employer contribute toward the total cost of 
insurance for active employees until they reach age seventy (70).  


The employer’s cost is authorized by the Group Insurance Board and is subject to 
change. The required employer contribution must be paid by the employer and cannot be 
paid by employee (except in the situation where employees are appealing their 
dismissal). 


Please note that the employer may pay any employee premiums either entirely or in part.  
Local employers may file an Employer Resolution to Pay Entire Premium (ET-1301) form 



dehlinger

Highlight







Page 21 of 80 Back to Top 


with ETF to pay the entire premium for all employees as provided under Wis.Stats.  
§ 40.05 (6) (e).  


1. Basic Plan 
State employers pay an additional 65.25 percent of the employee Basic premium.  


Local government employers pay an additional 20 percent of the employee Basic 
premium. This provides post-retirement coverage at the 25 percent-of-Basic level.  


Local government employers have the option to provide post-retirement coverage 
at the 50 percent-of-Basic level, which requires local government employers to 
pay 40 percent of the employee Basic premium. An Employer Resolution to Pay 
Entire Premium (ET-1303) form must be filed with ETF.  


Local government employers have the option to pay 100% of an employee’s 
premium.  An Employer Resolution to Pay Entire Premium (ET-1301) form must 
be filed with ETF. 


2. Supplemental Plan 
State employers pay an additional 37.25 percent of the employee Supplemental 
rate.  


No employer contribution is required of local government employers.  


Local government employers have the option pay 100% of an employee’s 
premium.  An Employer Resolution to Pay Entire Premium (ET-1301) form must 
be filed with ETF. 


3. Additional and Spouse and Dependent Plans 
No employer contribution is required. Employees pay the full cost of coverage.  


Local government employers have the option pay 100% of an employee’s 
premium.  An Employer Resolution to Pay Entire Premium (ET-1301) form must 
be filed with ETF. 


 


 



dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight







State Employee Local Government Employee
Basic and  


Supplemental
Additional Basic, Supplemental  


and Additional
Age April 1, 2023 - March 31, 2024 July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024


Under 30 $.05 $.08 $.05
30-34 $.05 $.08 $.06
35-39 $.05 $.08 $.07
40-44 $.08 $.11 $.08
45-49 $.13 $.19 $.12
50-54 $.20 $.31 $.22
55-59 $.28 $.42 $.39
60-64 $.38 $.57 $.49
65-69* $.50 $.73 $.57


70 and older ** ** **


Wisconsin Public Employers  
Group Life Insurance Plan  


Monthly Employee Premium Rates  
Per $1,000 of Insurance


 
State employees: Each Unit of Spouse and Dependent Insurance is $2.26 per month.
Local government employees: Each Unit of Spouse and Dependent Insurance is $1.60 per month. 


  *Premiums for age 65-69 are required as long as employment continues.
  **Active employees aged 70 and older should review the back of this sheet for additional information.
ET-2164 (REV 12/5/2022) Page 1 of 2


Wisconsin Department
of Employee Trust Funds
PO Box 7931
Madison WI 53707-7931
1-877-533-5020 (toll free)
Fax 608-267-4549
etf.wi.gov







**When an active employee reaches age 70:
	 	 ●	Basic	coverage	continues	at	a	reduced	level	without	further	premiums.
	 	 ●	Supplemental	coverage	ceases.
	 	 ●	Additional	coverage	will	continue	until	the	employee	cancels	coverage,	stops	paying	 
     premiums or terminates employment.
	 	 ●	Additional	coverage	rates	for	employees	age	70	and	older	are	listed	below. 


 
Attained Age


 
Rate


70 $1.00
71 $1.15
72 $1.25
73 $1.45
74 $1.60
75 $1.80
76 $1.95


77 and older $2.06


 ET-2164 (REV 12/5/2022) Page 2 of 2


Wisconsin Department
of Employee Trust Funds
PO Box 7931
Madison WI 53707-7931
1-877-533-5020 (toll free)
Fax 608-267-4549
etf.wi.gov


Monthly Rates for Additional Coverage  
For Employees Age 70 and Older









		08 R-xxx-2023 Affirm City of Stoughton payment of basic life insurance premiums for covered employees.pdf

		et1301.pdf

		Employer Resolution to Pay Entire Premium



		Page 20.pdf

		Page 21.pdf

		et2164_0.pdf

		Bill_20230724_0001.pdf










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Closure of Fidelity Investments accounts owned by Firefighters Pension Board 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ____ on 08/08/2023 
                                                               TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


 
Fiscal Impact:   None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-126-2023 


 
Date: 08/08/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Firefighters Pension Board currently has investment 
accounts with Fidelity Investments as part of its investment portfolio since before 1981; and, 


 WHEREAS, these investment accounts include the name of John D. Neal who retired from 
city employment as the Finance Director on June 30, 2009; and, 


 WHEREAS, Fidelity Investments has informed the City of Stoughton that requested the 
requested name changes to the investment accounts cannot be accomplished without the physical 
certificates provided to the City of Stoughton sometime prior to 1981; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has performed its due diligence to locate these physical 
certificates and has been unsuccessful in locating them; and, 


 WHEREAS, the current Director of Finance/Comptroller and City Attorney are in 
agreement that the Fidelity Investment accounts need to be closed; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller and City Attorney recommend that John 
D. Neal, as the former Finance Director of the City of Stoughton, be granted authority to act on 
the Firefighters Pension Board’s behalf for the sole purpose of closing all investment accounts 
with Fidelity Investments; 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council 
hereby grants authority to John D. Neal to act on behalf of the City of Stoughton Firefighters 
Pension Board to close all investment accounts with Fidelity Investments; and, 


 


 


 







 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the current Director of Finance/Comptroller as the 
Trustee under the Stoughton Firefighters Pension Trust Agreement Dated April 25, 2023 shall be 
required to obtain appropriate investments with the funds received from Fidelity Investments on 
behalf of the Firefighters Pension Board. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       








 


Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   


Date//Time: Tuesday, August 8, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 


Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84261297406?pwd=UElmVHZFcmlzbzR4MjBXQUNlWURnZz09 
Meeting ID: 842 6129 7406 Passcode: 984320 
One tap mobile +13092053325,,84261297406#,,,,*984320# US  
In-person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 
              321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  


 Live streamed:  
The meeting can also be live-streamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum Channel 981 or on 
TDS Channel 12.  The WSTO-TV app is also available on Roku, Apple TV, Fire TV, Android 
and iOS. Note: Effective September 1, 2023, the TDS channel number for WSTO-TV will be 981. 
 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Patrick Butler, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, 
Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Christina Wozniak 
Scanlon and Brett Schumacher 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF THE MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A 
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to 
attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone at (608) 873-6677 or via email at 
cchristen@cityofstoughton.com 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
1.  Roll Call  
 
2.  Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
 
3.  Public Comment Period: 


A. If you would like to speak during the public comment period, please fill out the form and submit 
it by 6:30 p.m. on August 8, 2023 http://speak.cityofstoughton.com. 
 


4. Communications and Presentations: 
A. Levy limit worksheet (preliminary) 2024 budget 08-01-2023 
B. Preliminary net new construction values 2024 budget 07-27-2023 
C. Preliminary equalized value 2024 budget 07-27-2023 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA - AMENDED 


Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at 
the time and location given below. 







 
5.  Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – July 11, 2023 and July 25, 2023 
       B.  Committee Minutes and Reports:  Finance (7/25/2023); Commission on Aging (7/11/23)         
        
OLD BUSINESS     


6.  R-127-2023 Pre-annexation agreement for Greenbriar Farms Limited Partnership (Finance Committee 
considering on August 8, 2023)       TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


7.  O-25-2023 Ordinance to annex approximately 34 acres from the Town of Dunn (Greenbriar Farms Limited 
Partnership) west of US Hwy 51 between Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road and County Highway B (Plan 
Commission recommended approval 6-0 on July 10, 2023) (Note:  The original ordinance number was O-23-
2023 on the July 11, 2023 agenda)      SECOND READING        


8.  O-23-2023 Rezoning of Certified Survey Map (CSM), Lot 1 at the Chalet Subdivision.  (Plan 
Commission recommends approval 6 – 0)      SECOND READING 


9.  O-24-2023 Creating Section 58-14 of the Stoughton Municipal Code, relating to the prohibition of 
fishing in City owned storm water ponds that use mechanical aeration devices. (Public Works 
recommends approval 5-0)                                                                             SECOND READING 
                                                                           


NEW BUSINESS 


10.  R-125-2023 Affirm City of Stoughton payment of basic life insurance premiums for Minnesota Life for all 
covered employees (Finance Committee considering on August 8, 2023)        TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


11.  R-126-2023 Closure of Fidelity Investment Accounts owned by Firefighters Pension Board (Finance 
Committee considering on August 8, 2023)     TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


ADJOURNMENT 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 
services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677. 
By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84261297406?pwd=UElmVHZFcmlzbzR4MjBXQUNlWURnZz09 
Meeting ID: 842 6129 7406 Passcode: 984320 
One tap mobile 
+13092053325,,84261297406#,,,,*984320# US  
+13126266799,,84261297406#,,,,*984320# US (Chicago) 
Dial by your location 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 







• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
 
Meeting ID: 842 6129 7406 
Passcode: 984320 
 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kS5wwp5Jx 
 
 








Data as of 08-01-2023


2022 payable 2023 actual levy 10,511,294$         


2023 personal property aid 33,453$                


1 2022 payable 2023 actual levy plus 2022 personal property aid 10,544,747$  


3 Exclude 2022 levy for new general obligation debt authorized after July 1, 2005 2,679,733$    


4 2022 payable 2023 adjusted actual city levy 7,865,014$    


5 Terminated TID applied to 2022 adjusted actual levy 0.000% -$                           7,865,014$    


6 Net new construction applied to 2023 adjusted actual levy 1.990% 156,514$              8,021,528$    


7 Greater of Line 5 or Line 6 8,021,528$    


8 2023 levy limit before adjustments less 2024 personal property aid 33,453$                7,988,075$    


9 Total adjustments (from Section D) -$                     


10 2023 payable 2024 allowable levy 7,988,075$    


1 Previous year's allowable levy 10,511,294$  


2 Previous year's actual levy 10,511,294$  


3 Previous year's unused levy -$                     


4 Previous year's actual levy 1.500% 157,669$        


5 Allowable increase (lessor of lines 3 or 4) -$                     


E Debt service levy for general obligation debt authorized after July 1, 2005 -$                     


M Adjustment to 2023 payable 2024 levy for annexation of land during 2023 from a town -$                     


U Total adjustments -$                     


(2,523,219)$   


(2,679,733)$   


Operating levy increase 156,514$        


To be determined


Total levy increase


Less debt levy increase


City of Stoughton


Municipal Levy Limit Worksheet


2023 Payable Allowable Levy Limit


Budget Year 2024


Section A:


Section B


Section D: Adjustments to Allowable Levy Limit


To be determined








Report Budget Allowed Allowed Allowed
Year Year Increase Three Yr Five Yr Increase Three Yr Five Yr Increase Three Yr Five Yr
2012 2013 0.35% n/a n/a 0.95% n/a n/a 0.74% n/a n/a
2013 2014 0.45% n/a n/a 1.50% n/a n/a 0.90% n/a n/a
2014 2015 0.82% 0.54% n/a 2.19% 1.55% n/a 1.12% 0.92% n/a
2015 2016 1.11% 0.79% n/a 2.21% 1.97% n/a 1.21% 1.08% n/a
2016 2017 1.94% 1.29% 0.93% 2.48% 2.29% 1.87% 1.43% 1.25% 1.08%
2017 2018 1.75% 1.60% 1.21% 2.86% 2.52% 2.25% 1.60% 1.41% 1.25%
2018 2019 1.59% 1.76% 1.44% 2.60% 2.65% 2.47% 1.62% 1.55% 1.40%
2019 2020 1.48% 1.61% 1.57% 2.44% 2.63% 2.52% 1.60% 1.61% 1.49%
2020 2021 1.84% 1.64% 1.72% 2.12% 2.39% 2.50% 1.60% 1.61% 1.57%
2021 2022 1.32% 1.55% 1.60% 2.08% 2.21% 2.42% 1.60% 1.60% 1.60%
2022 2023 2.43% 1.86% 1.73% 2.52% 2.24% 2.35% 1.71% 1.64% 1.63%
2023 2024 1.99% 1.91% 1.81% 2.44% 2.35% 2.32% 1.74% 1.68% 1.65%


Data source: Wisconsin Department of Revenue
https://www.revenue.wi.gov/Pages/EQU/nnc.aspx


Network files S:\Finance\BUDGET\Net New Construction


State of Wisconsin
Averages


City of Stoughton
Net New Construction Recap


Budget Year 2024


Averages
City of Stoughton County of Dane


Averages







2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
City of Stoughton 0.82% 1.11% 1.94% 1.75% 1.59% 1.48% 1.84% 1.32% 2.43% 1.99%
County of Dane 2.19% 2.21% 2.48% 2.86% 2.60% 2.44% 2.12% 2.08% 2.52% 2.44%


State of Wisconsin 1.12% 1.21% 1.43% 1.60% 1.62% 1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.71% 1.74%


0.00%


0.50%


1.00%


1.50%


2.00%


2.50%


3.00%


Net New Construction Recap
By Budget Year


City of Stoughton County of Dane State of Wisconsin







NET NEW CONSTRUCTION 2023


COMUN
CODE MUNICIPALITY


2022
EQUALIZED VALUE


2023 NET NEW
CONSTRUCTION PERCENT


* Split districts are summed at the end of the report


07/27/2023DATE EQNNC802WI


13002
13004
13006
13008
13010
13012
13014
13016
13018
13020
13022
13024
13026
13028
13034
13036
13038
13040
13042
13044
13046
13048
13050
13052
13054
13056
13058
13060
13062
13064
13066
13070
13106
13107
13108
13109
13111
13112
13113
13116
13117
13118
13151
13152
13153
13154
13157


TOWN OF ALBION 
TOWN OF BERRY 
TOWN OF BLACK EARTH 
TOWN OF BLOOMING GROVE 
TOWN OF BLUE MOUNDS 
TOWN OF BRISTOL 
TOWN OF BURKE 
TOWN OF CHRISTIANA 
TOWN OF COTTAGE GROVE 
TOWN OF CROSS PLAINS 
TOWN OF DANE 
TOWN OF DEERFIELD 
TOWN OF DUNKIRK 
TOWN OF DUNN 
TOWN OF MAZOMANIE 
TOWN OF MEDINA 
TOWN OF MIDDLETON 
TOWN OF MONTROSE 
TOWN OF OREGON 
TOWN OF PERRY 
TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS 
TOWN OF PRIMROSE 
TOWN OF ROXBURY 
TOWN OF RUTLAND 
TOWN OF SPRINGDALE 
TOWN OF SPRINGFIELD 
TOWN OF SUN PRAIRIE 
TOWN OF VERMONT 
TOWN OF VERONA 
TOWN OF VIENNA 
TOWN OF WESTPORT 
TOWN OF YORK 
VILLAGE OF BELLEVILLE *
VILLAGE OF BLACK EARTH 
VILLAGE OF BLUE MOUNDS 
VILLAGE OF BROOKLYN *
VILLAGE OF CAMBRIDGE *
VILLAGE OF COTTAGE GROVE 
VILLAGE OF CROSS PLAINS 
VILLAGE OF DANE 
VILLAGE OF DEERFIELD 
VILLAGE OF DEFOREST 
VILLAGE OF MAPLE BLUFF 
VILLAGE OF MARSHALL 
VILLAGE OF MAZOMANIE 
VILLAGE OF MCFARLAND 
VILLAGE OF MOUNT HOREB 


 314,531,900
 260,853,500
 104,309,600
 221,293,300
 207,672,000
 747,998,300
 660,603,000
 193,482,100
 553,517,500
 334,809,000
 174,430,000
 284,972,300
 298,498,800


 1,100,203,300
 181,791,700
 208,029,700


 1,801,955,400
 192,832,000
 589,870,400
 116,001,400
 678,926,600
 126,942,400
 331,950,800
 376,432,400
 458,562,800
 616,971,500
 388,037,300
 215,265,800
 418,192,600
 332,598,400


 1,215,453,900
 104,302,400
 299,646,400
 179,211,000
 102,075,400
 109,928,500
 240,360,500


 1,006,437,800
 494,388,700
 133,321,400
 300,008,900


 1,828,925,000
 581,262,700
 312,269,300
 221,754,800


 1,434,947,800
 1,021,582,400


 2,034,600
 3,538,400
 643,700
 137,000


 6,883,600
 13,334,700
 9,072,800
 280,500


 6,862,900
 7,308,700
 3,545,800
 2,393,000
 1,876,600
 10,340,600
 1,565,900
 2,525,100
 45,663,600


 600,000
 3,667,700
 353,600


 10,716,000
 1,959,800
 1,573,600
 6,248,000
 6,143,300
 6,396,600
 3,247,300
 5,023,000
 21,430,400
 4,348,000
 56,379,700


 267,000
 20,026,000
 3,292,000
 196,800


 3,477,900
 6,938,200
 71,576,000
 17,683,500
 3,467,500
 7,884,000
 84,112,500
 3,727,700
 4,301,800
 3,747,300
 26,592,700
 10,021,700


 0.65%
 1.36%
 0.62%
 0.06%
 3.31%
 1.78%
 1.37%
 0.14%
 1.24%
 2.18%
 2.03%
 0.84%
 0.63%
 0.94%
 0.86%
 1.21%
 2.53%
 0.31%
 0.62%
 0.30%
 1.58%
 1.54%
 0.47%
 1.66%
 1.34%
 1.04%
 0.84%
 2.33%
 5.12%
 1.31%
 4.64%
 0.26%
 6.68%
 1.84%
 0.19%
 3.16%
 2.89%
 7.11%
 3.58%
 2.60%
 2.63%
 4.60%
 0.64%
 1.38%
 1.69%
 1.85%
 0.98%


Pr
eli
mi
na
ry


E


A 
NNA 


ESTPORTESTPORT
YORK YORK 


AGE OF BELLEVILLE *AGE OF BELLEVILLE 
GE OF BLACK EARTHGE OF BLA


OF BLUE MOUNDSOF B
 BROOKLYN * BRO


AMBRIDGAM
TAG


0
300


8,800
203,300300


81,791,7001,7
208,029,7009,700


 1,801,955,40001,955,400
 192,832,000192,832,000
 589,870,400589,870,40
 116,001,400 116,00
 678,926,600 678,92
 126,942,4 126,
 331,950 3
 376,4
 45


 6,86,
 7,3087,3
 3,545,8 3,54
 2,393,000 2,393
 1,876,60076,
 10,340,640,
 1,565
 2,
 4







NET NEW CONSTRUCTION 2023


COMUN
CODE MUNICIPALITY


2022
EQUALIZED VALUE


2023 NET NEW
CONSTRUCTION PERCENT


* Split districts are summed at the end of the report


07/27/2023DATE EQNNC802WI


13165
13176
13181
13191
13196
13221
13225
13251
13255
13258
13281
13282
13286
13999


VILLAGE OF OREGON 
VILLAGE OF ROCKDALE 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 
VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE 
VILLAGE OF WINDSOR 
CITY OF EDGERTON *
CITY OF FITCHBURG 
CITY OF MADISON 
CITY OF MIDDLETON 
CITY OF MONONA 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 
CITY OF SUN PRAIRIE 
CITY OF VERONA 
COUNTY OF DANE 


 1,587,674,000
 20,055,800
 738,470,200


 2,638,409,300
 1,305,644,600


 30,614,000
4, , , 00
3 , , 9, 00
4,775,023,600
1,735,426,500
1,567,793,700
4,767,506,600
3,629,798,500
88, , , 00


 46,656,000
 171,800


 2,529,800
 68,610,000
 118,830,800


 14,500
 178,847,000
 864,933,400
 54,246,900


-565,800
 31,182,200
 147,339,000
 137,599,900


 2,163,802,600


 2.94%
 0.86%
 0.34%
 2.60%
 9.10%
 0.05%
3. %
2.2 %
 1.14%
-0.03%


.09
3.79
2.4 %


Pr
eli
mi
na
ry00


,600
798,500


, ,, 0000


864
 54,24,


-565-5
 31,182,2 31,18


 147,339,000147,339
 137,599,90099,


 2,163,802,6 2,163,802,







NET NEW CONSTRUCTION 2023


COMUN
CODE MUNICIPALITY


2022
EQUALIZED VALUE


2023 NET NEW
CONSTRUCTION PERCENT


* Split districts are summed at the end of the report


07/27/2023DATE EQNNC802WI


 744,576,755,400STATE OF WISCONSIN TOTAL  12,949,602,500  1.74%


Pr
eli
mi
na
ry





		05d1 Net New Construction recap 2024.pdf

		05d2 Net New Construction recap 2024.pdf

		05d3 Net new construction preliminary numbers 07-27-2023.pdf






Report Budget EQ Value Annual EQ Value Annual EQ Value Annual
Year Year (Exclude TIDs) Increase Three Yr Five Yr (Exclude TIDs) Increase Three Yr Five Yr (Exclude TIDs) Increase Three Yr Five Yr
2014 2015 886,512,800$      n/a n/a n/a 49,509,314,700$   n/a n/a n/a 463,822,280,345$   n/a n/a n/a
2015 2016 923,322,500$      4.15% n/a n/a 51,272,739,050$   3.56% n/a n/a 474,255,259,895$   2.25% n/a n/a
2016 2017 962,317,400$      4.22% n/a n/a 54,247,628,050$   5.80% n/a n/a 487,883,400,245$   2.87% n/a n/a
2017 2018 1,019,871,200$   5.98% 4.79% n/a 57,726,523,450$   6.41% 5.26% n/a 506,093,137,995$   3.73% 2.95% n/a
2018 2019 1,110,930,600$   8.93% 6.38% n/a 62,121,666,600$   7.61% 6.61% n/a 528,515,932,585$   4.43% 3.68% n/a
2019 2020 1,176,283,200$   5.88% 6.93% 5.83% 66,499,944,400$   7.05% 7.02% 6.09% 557,904,479,536$   5.56% 4.57% 3.77%
2020 2021 1,199,002,400$   1.93% 5.58% 5.39% 70,070,629,900$   5.37% 6.68% 6.45% 586,263,340,337$   5.08% 5.02% 4.34%
2021 2022 1,286,313,900$   7.28% 5.03% 6.00% 72,334,792,600$   3.23% 5.22% 5.94% 625,053,658,893$   6.62% 5.75% 5.08%
2022 2023 1,499,453,200$   16.57% 8.59% 8.12% 83,847,065,700$   15.92% 8.17% 7.84% 713,256,330,137$   14.11% 8.60% 7.16%
2023 2024 1,704,238,900$   13.66% 12.50% 9.06% 93,312,592,600$   11.29% 10.15% 8.57% 805,104,473,037$   12.88% 11.20% 8.85%


Budget year 2024 values are preliminary numbers dated 07-26-2023


Data source: Wisconsin Department of Revenue
https://www.revenue.wi.gov/Pages/EQU/coapprt.aspx


Network files S:\Finance\BUDGET\Equalized Value


City of Stoughton
Equalized Value Recap


Budget Year 2024


Averages
City of Stoughton County of Dane


Averages Averages
State of Wisconsin







2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
City of Stoughton 4.15% 4.22% 5.98% 8.93% 5.88% 1.93% 7.28% 16.57% 13.66%


County of Dane 3.56% 5.80% 6.41% 7.61% 7.05% 5.37% 3.23% 15.92% 11.29%


State of Wisconsin 2.25% 2.87% 3.73% 4.43% 5.56% 5.08% 6.62% 14.11% 12.88%


0.00%


2.00%


4.00%


6.00%


8.00%


10.00%


12.00%


14.00%


16.00%


18.00%


Equalized Value Recap
By Budget Year







2023 County Apportionment


                                   Equalized Value Reduced                     % to Total
District                            by TID Value Increment


 TID303WI                       Report Used for Apportionment of County Levy                Date: 07/26/2023


DANE County


Albion
Berry
Black Earth
Blooming Grove
Blue Mounds
Bristol
Burke
Christiana
Cottage Grove
Cross Plains
Dane
Deerfield
Dunkirk
Dunn
Mazomanie
Medina
Middleton
Montrose
Oregon
Perry
Pleasant Springs
Primrose
Roxbury
Rutland
Springdale
Springfield
Sun Prairie
Vermont
Verona
Vienna


 363,852,700
 277,779,600
 117,245,100
 246,562,600
 230,351,500
 851,988,000
 759,446,900
 221,081,800
 628,976,400
 384,984,100
 193,619,000
 308,039,000
 332,593,800


 1,242,945,700
 187,377,100
 239,957,600


 2,000,007,000
 218,360,000
 652,493,300
 128,101,700
 785,654,500
 143,203,300
 378,170,900
 402,072,600
 528,265,000
 692,758,700
 439,037,400
 243,183,300
 486,138,600
 367,354,700


 .003899288
 .002976872
 .001256477
 .002642329
 .002468600
 .009130472
 .008138740
 .002369260
 .006740531
 .004125746
 .002074950
 .003301151
 .003564297
 .013320235
 .002008058
 .002571546
 .021433409
 .002340091
 .006992554
 .001372823
 .008419598
 .001534662
 .004052732
 .004308878
 .005661240
 .007424064
 .004705018
 .002606114
 .005209786
 .003936818


Page 31 of 197


Pr
eli
mi
na


ry
          


0
900900


1,800
976,400


84,984,1004,100
193,619,000619,


 308,039,000308,039,00
 332,593,80032,593,800


 1,242,945,7001,242,945
 187,377,100187,377,
 239,957,600 239,95


 2,000,007,0 2,000
 218,360 
 652,4
 12


 .0038 
 .002.
 . .







2023 County Apportionment


                                   Equalized Value Reduced                     % to Total
District                            by TID Value Increment


 TID303WI                       Report Used for Apportionment of County Levy                Date: 07/26/2023


DANE County


Westport
York


 1,441,668,300
 119,077,700


Edgerton
Fitchburg


 32,397,200
 5,319,407,900


Belleville
Black Earth
Blue Mounds
Brooklyn
Cambridge
Cottage Grove
Cross Plains
Dane
Deerfield
Deforest
Maple Bluff
Marshall
Mazomanie
Mcfarland
Mount Horeb
Oregon
Rockdale
Shorewood Hills
Waunakee
Windsor


 286,916,400
 185,893,400
 112,977,700
 118,716,400
 244,190,100
 948,230,500
 493,701,500
 139,599,500
 298,681,800


 1,630,550,500
 690,545,200
 351,303,100
 213,091,600


 1,512,459,400
 1,085,832,200
 1,770,509,600


 21,295,000
 768,260,800


 2,837,514,400
 1,536,900,300


 .015449879
 .001276116


 .003074788
 .001992158
 .001210744
 .001272244
 .002616904
 .010161871
 .005290835
 .001496041
 .003200873
 .017474067
 .007400343
 .003764798
 .002283632
 .016208524
 .011636502
 .018973962
 .000228211
 .008233195
 .030408697
 .016470449


 .000347190
 .057006324


 15,612,347,900  .167312337


 15,247,169,400  .163398840


Town Total


Village Total


Page 32 of 197


Pr
eli
mi
na


ry
          


000
,70000


716,400
4,190,1000,100


948,230,50030,500
 493,701,50093,701,5
 139,599,500139,599,500
 298,681,800 298,681,800


 1,630,550,500 1,630,550,5
 690,545,200 690,54
 351,303,10351,3
 213,091, 213


 1,512,41
 1,0851
 1,7


 .0154 
 .001.







2023 County Apportionment


                                   Equalized Value Reduced                     % to Total
District                            by TID Value Increment


 TID303WI                       Report Used for Apportionment of County Levy                Date: 07/26/2023


DANE County


Madison
Middleton
Monona
Stoughton
Sun Prairie
Verona


 40,537,067,500
 4,257,883,200
 1,664,682,800
 1,704,238,900
 5,084,169,000
 3,853,228,800


 .434422261
 .045630317
 .017839852
 .018263761
 .054485347
 .041293771


 62,453,075,300  .669288823City Total


 93,312,592,600  1.000000000County Total


                                         TID Value Increments 
District                              TID #     YEAR       Base Value    Current Value     Increment


T . Springfield
V . Belleville
V . Belleville
V . Black Earth
V . Black Earth
V . Brooklyn
V . Brooklyn
V . Cambridge
V . Cambridge
V . Cambridge
V . Cottage Grove
V . Cottage Grove
V . Cottage Grove
V . Cottage Grove
V . Cottage Grove


001E
003
005
003
005
001
002
004
005
006
005
006
007
008
009


2014
2009
2009
2009
2018
2008
2013
2013
2020
2022
2003
2005
2005
2018
2018


 408,400
 162,400


 6,990,200
 3,089,300
 5,748,600
 833,000
 21,100


 10,041,000
 3,007,200


 60,700
 2,896,100
 6,068,800
 14,419,000
 2,611,600
 9,893,500


 12,243,900
 55,242,600
 8,118,400
 6,679,400
 8,404,000
 1,508,600
 4,484,600
 16,642,000
 11,146,200


 62,000
 222,469,500
 8,956,600
 54,346,000
 2,757,600
 37,625,100


 11,835,500
 55,080,200
 1,128,200
 3,590,100
 2,655,400
 675,600


 4,463,500
 6,601,000
 8,139,000


 1,300
 219,573,400
 2,887,800
 39,927,000


 146,000
 27,731,600


Page 33 of 197


Pr
eli
mi
na


ry
          


0


 .4344 
 .045.
 . .


5,300


12,592,6002,600


   TID Value Incremen   TID Value Incr
 TID #     YEAR      TID #     YEAR


001E001
00303
005005
0030
005005
001
002
00


201420
2009
200







2023 County Apportionment


 TID303WI                       Report Used for Apportionment of County Levy                Date: 07/26/2023


DANE County


                                         TID Value Increments 
District                              TID #     YEAR       Base Value    Current Value     Increment


C . Middleton
C . Monona
C . Monona
C . Monona
C . Monona
C . Monona
C . Monona
C . Stoughton
C . Stoughton
C . Stoughton
C . Stoughton
C . Stoughton
C . Stoughton
C . Sun Prairie
C . Sun Prairie
C . Sun Prairie
C . Sun Prairie
C . Sun Prairie
C . Sun Prairie
C . Sun Prairie
C . Verona
C . Verona
C . Verona
C . Verona


005
004
005
006
007
008
009
004
005
006
007
008
009
008
009
011
012
013
014
015
004
008
009
010


2009
2000
2008
2010
2012
2012
2015
1999
2010
2015
2015
2018
2022
2002
2007
2015
2016
2017
2020
2022
1996
2017
2017
2020


 89,571,300
 29,942,500
 4,399,900
 17,693,000
 8,247,500
 416,000


 7,246,100
 9,765,300
 10,269,200


 10,000
 1,111,800
 7,376,600


 36,800
 22,279,000
 12,294,900
 32,499,300
 3,803,600
 618,200


 5,448,800
 49,368,900
 8,842,400
 29,164,700
 7,863,300
 1,795,300


 320,088,100
 72,890,400
 32,186,000
 50,720,500
 21,023,000
 28,925,200
 71,279,700
 21,726,000
 15,596,100
 8,296,700
 52,227,700
 10,188,600
 4,059,500


 146,483,600
 129,148,900
 102,984,400
 20,293,700
 58,338,500
 9,983,000
 56,593,800
 56,435,000
 70,505,200
 45,590,100
 10,037,800


 230,516,800
 42,947,900
 27,786,100
 33,027,500
 12,775,500
 28,509,200
 64,033,600
 11,960,700
 5,326,900
 8,286,700
 51,115,900
 2,812,000
 4,022,700


 124,204,600
 116,854,000
 70,485,100
 16,490,100
 57,720,300
 4,534,200
 7,224,900
 47,592,600
 41,340,500
 37,726,800
 8,242,500


* THIS DISTRICT HAS A ZERO OR NEGATIVE INCREMENT, NO INCREMENT SHOWN


Page 36 of 197


Pr
eli
mi
na


ry
   Current Curren


0080
009009
0111
012012
01313
01401
015015
004
008
009
0


9
010


20155
201515
20182018
20222
20022
2007200
20152015
20162
2017
20


,300
42,5000


,399,900,900
17,693,00093,000
 8,247,50047,500
 416,000 416,0


 7,246,100 7,246,100
 9,765,30065,3
 10,269,200 10


 10,00 
 1,111, 
 7,37


 2


 320,088,1 320,0
 72,890,402,89
 32,186,186
 50,7272
 21,
 2


NEGATIVE INCNEGA







2023 County Apportionment
(All Property)


2023 Equalized Value Reduced by TID Value Increment


 TID303WI                       Report Used for Apportionment of County Levy                Date: 07/26/2023


Waushara


Winnebago


Wood


District                                             Total                 % to Total


 $3,911,716,400


 $18,938,777,600


 $7,414,121,900


 $805,104,473,037State Total (Reduced by TID Value Increment) 


 .00486


 .02352


 .00921


 1.00000


 $843,073,291,100Total Equalized Value for State


Total TID Increments for State  $37,968,818,063


 $805,104,473,037Total Equalized Value less TID Increments


Town


Town


Town


 $3,508,658,400


 $6,263,279,900


 $3,296,408,000


 $166,487,000


 $9,916,631,000


 $3,645,286,800


 $236,571,000


 $2,758,866,700


 $472,427,100


Village


Village


Village


City


City


City


Total


Total


Total


City Total


Village Total


Town Total


 $356,124,525,202


 $153,360,007,835


 $295,619,940,000


Page 197 of 197


Pr
eli
mi
na


ry
      


 $3,911,716,400,911,716,


 $18,938,777$18,9


educed by TID Value Ineduced by TID Val


lized Value for Statelized Value for 


ncrements for Statncremen


Value lesVal


6,408,0008,00


000


$3,645,286,8005,286
$472,427,10027,100





		05e1 Equalized Value Recap 2024.pdf

		05e 2Equalized Value Recap 2024.pdf

		05e3 Preliminary equalized values 07-26-2023.pdf






Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   


Date//Time: Tuesday, July 11, 2023, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, 
Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher, Vacant (2) 


 
CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Christen called the roll, there were 8 alders present.  Ligocki and Caravello were absent and excused. 
 
Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
Mayor Swadley noted the meeting had been properly noticed. 
 
Public Comment Period: 
JoAnn Grassman presented information and various publications of “Best Places to Visit in Wisconsin” and that 
Stoughton is not included.  She asked for support from the Council to the Downtown Merchants to pursue 
inclusion of Stoughton for “Best Places to Visit in Wisconsin”. 
 
Communications and Presentations: 
President Hirsch extended a thank you to the Stoughton Junior Fair Board for putting on such a good fair this 
year, it was a very nice event. 
Mayor Swadley wanted to expand on that, noting the weather was good, it was well attended.  He had visited 
daily, he also was there with representatives from Strand and Parks Director Glynn, reviewing aspects of the 
Mandt Park Master Plan. 
Director Scheel noted the pathway and new bridge had been opened at the start of the fair. A safe, wide, and paved 


pathway with plantings  
 
5.  Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – June 27, 2023 
       B.  Committee Minutes and Reports:  
 Finance (6/13/23); Public Safety Committee (5/24/23) 
       C.  R-111-2023 Confirmation of the Mayor’s Aldermanic Appointments to Non-Standing    
 Boards, Committees and Commissions 
       D.   R-112-2023 Approving the Mayor's Citizen Appointments to Standing Committees 
 
Motion by Hirsch, second by Schumacher to approve the consent agenda.  Motion carried 8-0. 
   
OLD BUSINESS 


O-21-2023 Amend Section 70-176 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Related to parking prohibited at all 
times on the northside of West Wilson St. 40 feet west from Lincoln Avenue. 







Motion by Jenson, second by Majewski to approve O-21-2023 Amend Section 70-176 of the Stoughton Code of 
Ordinances, Related to parking prohibited at all times on the northside of West Wilson St. 40 feet west from 
Lincoln Avenue.  Motion carried 8-0. 


R-105-2023 Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-105-2023 Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy. 


Motion carried 8-0. 


NEW BUSINESS 


Discussion and possible action – the City of Stoughton aldermanic appointment questionnaire 


Clerk Christen noted that this would be before the Council on July 25 along with District 1 applicants.   


R-113-2023 Magnolia Springs wetland and woodland restoration plan. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-113-2023 Magnolia Springs wetland and woodland 
restoration plan.  Motion carried 8-0. 


R-114-2023 Naming of Teigen Farm Park in Magnolia Springs development. 


Motion by Schroerlucke, second by Jenson to approve R-114-2023 Naming of Teigen Farm Park in Magnolia 
Springs development.  Motion carried 8-0. 


Discussion and possible action regarding timing of check issuance to Stoughton Area Community Foundation of 
American Rescue Plan Act funds. 


Director Ehlinger noted the need for direction from the Council on when to make payments to the approved 
ARPA recipients.  Motion by Hirsch, second by Reeves to make the payments in October 2023.  Motion carried 
8-0. 


R-115-2023 Acceptance of Tax Incremental Districts financial statements 12-31-2022.  


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-115-2023 Acceptance of Tax Incremental Districts 
financial statements 12-31-2022.  Motion carried 8-0. 


O-23-2023 Ordinance to annex approximately 34 acres from the Town of Dunn (Sheryl Anderson) west of US 
Hwy 51 between Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road and County Highway B. 


Schumacher read O-23-2023 Ordinance to annex approximately 34 acres from the Town of Dunn (Sheryl 
Anderson) west of US Hwy 51 between Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road and County Highway B as a first 
reading.  O-23-2023 will be back before Council on July 25. 


 ADJOURNMENT 


Motion by Heilli, second by Jenson to adjourn.  Motion carried 8-0. 7:41 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
Candee Christen 







City Clerk 

















		Council minutes July 11, 2023.pdf

		Common Council minutes (signed) 07-25-2023.pdf










 1 


COMMISSION ON AGING MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, July 11, 2023 


Stoughton Area Senior Center 
 


Present:  Roz Gausman, Lou Havlik, Jeanne Schwass-Long, David Sharpe, Sue Springman,  
David Thomas, Sue Wollin 
Staff Present: Cindy McGlynn, Hollee Camacho  
Absent & Excused: Barb Manson, Bob McGeever, Lisa Reeves, Faith Schuck 
 
Call to order: L. Havlik called the meeting to order at 11:09 AM.   
June Minutes: Moved by R. Gausman, seconded by J. Schwass-Long to approve; passed 
unanimously.   
 
Director Comments: C. McGlynn 
 Apologized for being late to meeting; thanked everyone for their attendance. 
 We are very busy at the Center today. We’re preparing for tonight’s fundraiser in the park. 
 D. Sharpe inquired about June’s meeting minutes noting we received 120 brats from the Brat 


Fest organization and purchased more for a total of 420 brats. He suggested we request more 
brats next year –we’d make more profit and Brat Fest’s numbers would benefit by selling more 
brats/providing more donations to charities. 


 This month the new database, SchedulesPlus, went live on our sign-in touchscreens. Although 
the change has been difficult for some participants, the new system is better for us. It will 
provide us with more services, better reporting and is much more economical. Please help us 
emphasize how important it is for our users to sign-in. Each sign-in increases our accountability 
to our financial supporters. 


 Today the Memory Café is being held at the annex. And, with an exercise group beginning to 
meet here on Tuesdays and COA here too, the parking lot is full! 


 
Construction Update:  
 We are still waiting on chairs for the annex space next door and are working on signage. We 


have decided to name the rooms after two key Stoughton Mayors who supported establishing 
the Senior Center and moving to its current location: Cooper will be the room to the west and 
Johnson will be the room to the east.  


 Laura is doing a great job looking at expanding programming. 
 
Staff Updates: Marcia Standard, a previous member of COA, is our new Administrative Assistant. 
We are excited to have her and she is doing wonderfully.  


 
Accreditation Update: 
 Our first re-accreditation meeting will be tomorrow afternoon. The process is a chance for us to 


review how we provide programs and services to older adults in the community and to identify 
ways we can improve. 


 The national re-accreditation process has changed. NISC/NCOA no longer sends reviewers to 
the Center. Instead, we self-evaluate and submit our materials online.  







 2 


 The state process is the same and will send people here to evaluate the Center 
 Laura Trotter, our Program/Volunteer Coordinator will be joining the re-accreditation team 


along with Cindy and Hollee. We also have some new committee members involved. 
 
Committee Reports: no news 
 
Legislative Update:  


• The County is beginning to put together priorities for the next budget. When asked by the 
Area Agency on Aging, the focal point/senior center directors said case management 
services is their top priority for funding. We are grateful for the City’s financial support. 
Though it would help if we received additional dollars from the County to support more 
time for case management.  


o Our Case Managers are seeing a big increase in new referrals. With 29 new referrals 
just last month, we are continuing a 2-3 week waiting list for new referrals that have 
non-urgent request.  


o Additionally, complex cases are on the rise and the coordination and involvement of 
multiple agencies is especially time-consuming. Cindy gave an example of an 
extreme hoarding case that we referred to the County’s Adult Protective Services, 
but it didn’t meet their requirements so it was pushed back to us to problem-solve 
with the client. Fortunately, the individual was open to help, and the assigned case 
manager involved six or more agencies and family members to clean up the home. 
Our case manager will continue to advocate and navigate ongoing assistance for the 
client. 


o Case Managers must be mindful of their time. They are continually prioritizing cases; 
providing resources and advice when family members are available and offering 
more frequent check-ins and help to clients who lack support.  


o Case managers must also come to terms with their limitations. No matter how 
difficult the situations is, if clients are still their own decision-maker and don’t want 
assistance there’s little staff can do. 


 
 
Meeting Adjourned: Moved by D. Sharpe, seconded by R. Gausman to adjourn the meeting. Carried 
unanimously.  Meeting adjourned at 11:30 AM by L. Havilk. 
 
Next Meeting:  Tuesday, August 1, 2023 at 11:00 AM  





		1 Finance Committee minutes (signed) 07-11-2023.pdf

		7 COA Minutes  JULY 2023.pdf






T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2023\08-08-2023\Backup documents\10 R-127-2023 Pre-annexation agreement for Greenbriar Farms Limited Partnership.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving a Pre-Annexation Agreement between the City of Stoughton and Greenbriar Farms 


Limited Partnership 


 
Committee 
Action:  


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ___ on 08/08/2023    
                                                                                TIME SENSITIVE ITEM  


Fiscal Impact: 
 
N/A 


 
File Number: 


 
R-127-2023 


 
Date Introduced: August 8, 2023 


 
 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee reviewed the Pre-Annexation Agreement 
between the City of Stoughton and Greenbriar Farms Limited Partnership; and 
 


WHEREAS, this Pre-Annexation Agreement outlines items of mutual interest between the City 
and the petitioner; now therefore 
 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Pre-Annexation 
Agreement, attached as Attachment A, between the City of Stoughton and Greenbriar Farms Limited 
Partnership is hereby approved.  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
 
            
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com   
 


 
 
 
Date:  July 20, 2023 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Finance Committee Agenda Item – Greenbriar Farms Limited Partnership Pre-


Annexation Agreement 
 
The City of Stoughton has received a request by Greenbriar Farms Limited Partnership to annex 
properties from the Town of Dunn.  The City has prepared a Pre-Annexation Agreement 
outlining conditions related to the annexation for your consideration.   
 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
    
     


 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance Committee 7-20-23 Greenbriar Pre-Annexation Agreement.docx 































PETITION FOR ANNEXATION 


The undersigned, constituting 100 percent of the owners of the following described territory located in 
the Town of Dunn, Dane County, Wisconsin, lying contiguous to the City of Stoughton, petition the 
Honorable Mayor and Common Council of said city to annex the territory described below and shown 
upon the attached map, as permitted by Chapter 66 of the Wisconsin Statutes, to the City of Stoughton, 
Dane County, Wisconsin. 


A part of the Southeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 36, Township 6 North, Range 10 East in the 
Town of Dunn, Dane County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows: 


Beginning at the Southeast Corner of said Section 36; Thence S89°59’55”W along the south line of said 
Southeast ¼, 71.72 feet; Thence N18°33’20”E along the west right-of-way of U.S.H. 51 as depicted on 
RW Project 5845-00-21, Sheet 4.4, and the southerly extension thereof, 88.26 feet; Thence N01°23’25”E 
along said west right-of-way of U.S.H. 51, 100.00 feet; Thence N07°08’25”W along said west right-of-
way of U.S.H. 51, 65.77 feet; Thence S89°59’55”W along the north lines of CSM 784, CSM 478, and CSM 
793, 530.70 feet to the northwest corner of CSM 793; Thence S00°00’05”E along the west line of CSM 
793, 248.90 feet to a point on the south line of said Southeast ¼; Thence S89°59’55”W along the south 
line of said Southeast ¼, 481.56 feet to the southeast corner of CSM 684; Thence N01°08’57”E along the 
east line of CSM 684; 500.01 feet to the northeast corner of CSM 684; Thence S89°59’55”W along the 
north line of CSM 684, 246.00 feet to a point on the west line of the Southeast ¼ of said Southeast ¼; 
Thence N01°12’08” along the west line of the Southeast ¼ of said Southeast ¼, 819.49 feet to a point on 
the north line of said Southeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼; Thence S89°41’47”E along the north line of said 
Southeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼, 1312.04 feet to a point on the east line of said Southeast ¼; Thence 
S01°22’47W” along the east line of said Southeast ¼, 1312.61 feet to the Point of Beginning. 


Said parcel contains 1,468,331 square feet or 33.708 acres more or less including areas to the northwest 
of the intersection of U.S.H. 51 and Rutland Dunn Town Line Road. 


There are no persons residing in the territory. 


Dated this 18th day of July 2023 


Signed: ________________________ 


Greenbriar Farms Ltd. Partnership 
Sheryl Anderson, _________________ 
754 U.S.H. 51 
Stoughton, WI 53589 


Exhibit A







S89°41'47"E 1312.04'


S89°59'55"W 481.56'


N
01


°0
8'


57
"E


50
0.


01
'


S89°59'55"W
246.00'


N
01


°1
2'


08
"E


81
9.


49
'


S0
1°


22
'4


7"
W


13
12


.6
1'


L1


S89°59'55"W 530.70'


S0
0°


00
'0


5"
E


24
8.


90
'


L2
L3


L4


LINE TABLE


LINE


L1


L2


L3


L4


BEARING


S89°59'55"W


N18°33'20"E


N01°23'25"E


N07°08'25"W


LENGTH


71.72'


88.26'


100.00'


65.77'


PLOTTED: Tuesday, June 13, 2023 4:57:05 PM,  FROM: G:\21\21902\21902000\CADD\Survey\West of 51-North of Rutland-Dunn\Annexation\21902000_NW Rutland 51_Annexation.dwg DRAWN BY: Brad Tisdale


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com


GREENBRIAR FARMS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
PROPERTY ANNEXATION


STOUGHTON, WI
ANNEXATION MAP


PARCEL NO. 061036495005


AREA = 1,468,331 SQ FT
OR 33.708 ACRES +/-


TOWN OF RUTLAND


TOWN OF DUNN


LOT 1


CSM 684


LOT 1


CSM 793 LOT 1


CSM 478 LOT 1


CSM 784


PARCEL NO.
061036490000


PARCEL NO.
061036485007


PARCEL NO.
061036480802 PARCEL NO.


061131385022


PARCEL NO.
061131390022


PARCEL NO.
051106288872PARCEL NO.


051001180000
PARCEL NO.


051001181762
CITY OF STOUGHTON


CITY OF STOUGHTON


C
IT


Y 
O


F 
ST


O
U


G
H


TO
N


TO
W


N
 O


F 
D


U
N


N


CITY OF STOUGHTON


TOWN OF DUNN


C
IT


Y 
O


F
ST


O
U


G
H


TO
N


TO
W


N
 O


F 
D


U
N


N


LOT 18
LOT 17


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


LOT 2
51 WEST


LOT 1


N


EW


S


WI
MADISON


0 100 200


SW 1/4 - SW 1/4


SW 1/4 - SE 1/4


SE 1/4 - SE 1/4


NW 1/4 - SE 1/4


NE 1/4 - SE 1/4


NW 1/4 - SW 1/4


SOUTHEAST CORNER
SECTION 36
P.O.B.


SOUTH 1/4
CORNER


SECTION 31


SOUTH 1/4
CORNER
SECTION  36


FILE NO.
21902000
SHEET 1 OF 1


51 WEST
OUTLOT 1


PARCEL NO. 051001182002
PARCEL NO.


051001181212


PARCEL NO.
051001188102


PARCEL NO.
061036498600PARCEL NO.


061036498404
PARCEL NO.


061036498208PARCEL NO.
061036497101


51 WEST


51 WEST
51 WEST


SEC 36, T6N, R10E


SEC 36, T6N, R10E


SEC 36, T6N, R10E


SEC 36, T6N, R10E


SEC 31, T6N, R11E


SEC 31, T6N, R11E


TOWN OF DUNN


EAST 1/4
CORNER
SECTION 36



AutoCAD SHX Text

U.S.H. 51



AutoCAD SHX Text

RUTLAND-DUNN TOWN LINE RD





		06 R-127-2023 Pre-annexation agreement for Greenbriar Farms Limited Partnership - updated.pdf

		10 R-127-2023 Pre-annexation agreement for Greenbriar Farms Limited Partnership.pdf

		10a Finance Committee 7-20-23 Greenbriar Pre-Annexation Agreement.pdf

		10c Exhibit A.pdf



		20230807094122807.pdf










S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Direct annexation of a portion of the Town of Dunn - 8-2-23.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE DIRECT ANNEXATION BY UNANIMOUS 


APPROVAL OF A PORTION OF THE TOWN OF DUNN TO THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, 
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommended approval 6-0 on 07/10/2023     
Fiscal Impact:       $99.40 lost tax revenue to the Town of Dunn 


File Number: O-25-2023 Date Introduced: July 11, 2023 First reading 
August 8, 2023 Second reading 


 
RECITALS 


 
A. Daniele St. Marie Thompson on behalf of Greenbriar Farms Limited Partnership 


(“Owner”) who owns land in the Town of Dunn as described in Exhibit A and 
shown in Exhibit B (the “Territory”) and is seeking to annex the Territory by 
unanimous approval to the City of Stoughton, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0217(2). 


 
B. The City of Stoughton Plan Commission has recommended that the Territory be 


annexed to the City, and that the Territory be assigned a temporary zoning 
classification of RH - Rural Holding. 
 


C. The proposed annexation will need to be reviewed by the Wisconsin Department 
of Administration to determine if the annexation is in the public interest. 
 


D. The population of the proposed land is 0. 
 


E. The annexation represents approximately 33.708 acres from the Town of Dunn. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Direct annexation of a portion of the Town of Dunn - 8-2-23.docx 


NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane 
County, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 


 
ORDINANCE 


 
1. Recitals.  The above recitals are material to and are incorporated in this Ordinance. 


 
2. Territory Annexed.  The Territory is annexed by unanimous approval to the City 


of Stoughton pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0217(2). 


3. Effect of Annexation.  From and after the effective date of this ordinance, the 
Territory shall be a part of the City of Stoughton for any and all purposes provided 
by law, and all persons coming or residing within such Territory shall be subject to 
all ordinances, rules, and regulations governing the City of Stoughton. 


4. Town Taxes. Pursuant to §66.0217(14)(a)1., Wis. Stats., the City agrees to pay 
annually to the Town of Dunn for 5 years, an amount equal to the amount of 
property taxes that the town levied on the annexed territory, as shown by the tax 
roll under §70.65 Wis. Stats., in the year in which the annexation is final.  


5. Temporary Zoning Designation.  The Territory shall be temporarily zoned R-H 
Rural Holding. 


6. Ward Designation.  The Territory shall be added to Ward No. 8 of the City of 
Stoughton. 


7. Clerk Duties.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish notice of and provide 
copies of this Ordinance in accordance with the applicable Wisconsin Statutes. 


8. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as 
provided by law. 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Direct annexation of a portion of the Town of Dunn - 8-2-23.docx 


 
APPROVED: 
 
 
By:        
Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Candee Christen, City Clerk 


APPROVED:  ___________ 
PUBLISHED: ___________ 
 
 
  







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Direct annexation of a portion of the Town of Dunn - 8-2-23.docx 


 
EXHIBIT  A 


 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 


 
A part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 36, Township 6 North, Range 10 East in the 
Town of Dunn, Dane County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows: 
Beginning at the Southeast Corner of said Section 36;  
Thence S89°59’55”W along the south line of said Southeast 1/4, 71.72 feet; 
Thence N18°33’20”E along the west right-of-way of U.S.H. 51 as depicted on RW Project 5845-00-
21, Sheet 4.4, and the southerly extension thereof, 88.26 feet; 
Thence N01°23’25”E along said west right-of-way of U.S.H. 51, 100.00 feet; 
Thence N07°08’25”W along said west right-of-way of U.S.H. 51, 65.77 feet; 
Thence S89°59’55”W along the north lines of CSM 784, CSM 478, and CSM 793, 530.70 feet to the 
northwest corner of CSM 793; 
Thence S00°00’05”E along the west line of CSM 793, 248.90 feet to a point on the south line of said 
Southeast 1/4; 
Thence S89°59’55”W along the south line of said Southeast 1/4, 481.56 feet to the southeast corner of 
CSM 684; 
Thence N01°08’57”E along the east line of CSM 684; 500.01 feet to the northeast corner of CSM 684; 
Thence S89°59’55”W along the north line of CSM 684, 246.00 feet to a point on the west line of the 
Southeast 1/4 of said Southeast 1/4; 
Thence N01°12’08” along the west line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Southeast 1/4, 819.49 feet to a 
point on the north line of said Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4; 
Thence S89°41’47”E along the north line of said Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4, 1312.04 feet to a 
point on the east line of said Southeast 1/4; 
Thence S01°22’47W” along the east line of said Southeast 1/4, 1312.61 feet to the Point of 
Beginning. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Direct annexation of a portion of the Town of Dunn - 8-2-23.docx 


 
EXHIBIT B 


 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\071023\PC Info\Anderson Annexation Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  July 5, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the July 10, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


meetings of July 25 and August 8, 2023  
 
 
Annexation request for property located in the NW corner of the City, west of US 
Highway 51 between Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road and County Highway B. 
The applicant is seeking to annex 33.708 acres from the Town of Dunn for future development. 
 
The application materials and ordinance are provided.   A recommendation to the Common Council 
is necessary. 
 
 
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





L


Barberry Rd


Velkommen Way


U
SH


 5
1


Greenbriar Dr
Rutland-Dunn Town Line Rd


O
akri dge


W
ay


Blue Grass Dr


Wild Goose Way


Sundt


iV rgin Lake Dr


Oak
woo


d
Ct


Bl ack
O


ak
Dr


Lake Woods Way


Pa
lm


 G
ra


ss
 W


ay
51£¤


O
ak


 O
pe


ni
ng


 D
r


Proposed
Annex. 
Area







Request for 
Annexation Review
Wisconsin Department of Administration


WI Dept. of Administration
Municipal Boundary Review
PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701
608-264-6102
wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov
https://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview


Online Submittal and Payment: Instead of this form go to https://appengine.egov.com/apps/wi/dir/annexation
This will speed up the process by eliminating the time it used to take to mail the check to us.


Petitioner Information 


Name: Daniele St. Marie Thompson on behalf of 


Phone: (608) 467-8760


Email: dst@stmarie-law.com


Contact Information if different than petitioner:


Representative’s Name: Jeffrey D. Thelen, MSA Professional Services, Inc.


Phone: (608) 355-8911


E-mail: jthelen@msa-ps.com


1. Town(s) where property is located: Dunn


2. Petitioned City or Village: Stoughton


3. County where property is located: Dane


4. Population of the territory to be annexed: 0


5. Area (in acres) of the territory to be annexed: 33.708
6. Tax parcel number(s) of territory to be annexed (if the territory is part or all of an existing parcel):


061036495005


Include these required items with this form:
1. Legal Description meeting the requirements of s.66.0217 (1) (c) [see attached annexation guide]


2. Map meeting the requirements of s. 66.0217 (1) (g) [see attached annexation guide]


3. Signed Petition or Notice of Intent to Circulate [see attached annexation guide]


4. Check or money order covering review fee [see next page for fee calculation]
(November 2022)



schmiejjwl

Date Stamp



schmiejjwl

Text Box

July 18, 2023







Annexation Review Fee Schedule
A Guide for Calculating the Fee Required by ss.16.53 (4) and 66.0217, Wis. Stats.


Required Fees
There is an initial filing fee and a variable review fee


$0 Initial Filing Fee (required with the first submittal of all petitions) 
$200 – 2 acres or less
$350 – 2.01 acres or more


$0 Review Fee (required with all annexation submittals except those that consist ONLY of road right-of-way)
$200 –     2 acres or less
$600 –     2.01 to 10 acres
$800 – 10.01 to 50 acres


$1,000 – 50.01 to 100 acres
$1,400 – 100.01 to 200 acres
$2,000 – 200.01 to 500 acres
$4,000 – Over 500 acres


$0 TOTAL FEE DUE (Add the Filing Fee to the Review Fee)


Include check or money order, payable to: Department of Administration


DON’T attach the check with staples, tape, …


THE DEPARTMENT WILL NOT PROCESS
AN ANNEXATION PETITION THAT IS NOT ACCOMPANIED


BY THE REQUIRED FEE.


THE DEPARTMENT’S 20-DAY STATUTORY REVIEW PERIOD 
COMMENCES UPON RECEIPT OF THE PETITION AND REVIEW FEE


Shaded Area for Office Use Only
Date fee & form received: __________


Payer: ______________________________________________________________  Check Number: _________


Check Date: _________


Amount: _________







ANNEXATION SUBMITTAL GUIDE 
 
 s. 66.0217 (5)    THE PETITION  


 State the purpose of the petition: -Direct annexation by unanimous approval; OR 
-Direct annexation by one-half approval; OR 
-Annexation by referendum. 


 Petition must be signed by:  -All owners and electors, if by unanimous approval. 
-See 66.0217 (3) (a), if by one-half approval. 
-See 66.0217 (3) (b), if by referendum. 


 
 State the population of the land to be annexed. 


 
[It is beneficial to include Parcel ID or Tax numbers, the parcel area, and identify the annexee (Town) and annexor  
(Village or City) in the petition.] 


 
 
 s. 66.0217 (1) (c)    THE DESCRIPTION 
   The annexation petition must include a legal description of the land to be annexed. The land must be described by 


reference to the government lot, private claim, quarter-section, section, town and range in which the land lies. The land must 
be further described by metes and bounds commencing from a monumented corner of the section or quarter-section, or the 
monumented end of a private claim or federal reservation, in which the land lies;  OR 


 
   If the land is wholly and entirely within a lot or lots, or all of a block or blocks of a recorded subdivision plat or certified 


survey map, it must be described by reference to the lot (s) and/or block (s) therein, along with the name of the plat or the 
number, volume, page, and County of the certified survey map. 


 
  The land may NOT be described only by: -Aliquot part; 
     -Reference to any other document (plat of survey, deed, etc.); 
     -Exception or Inclusion; 
     -Parcel ID or tax number. 


 
 
 s. 66.0217 (1) (g)    THE MAP 
   The map shall be an accurate reflection of the legal description of the parcel being annexed. As such, it must show: 
  -A tie line from the parcel to the monumented corner of the section or quarter-section, or the monumented end of a private claim 


or federal reservation, in which the parcel lies. The corner and monument must be identified. 
  -Bearings and distances along all parcel boundaries as described. 
  -All adjoiners as referenced in the description. 
 


  The map must include a graphic scale.  
 
   The map must show and identify the existing municipal boundary, in relation to the parcel being annexed. 
 
  [It is beneficial to include a North arrow, and identify adjacent streets and parcels on the map.] 
 
 


s. 66.0217    FILING 
   The petition must be filed with the Clerk of the annexing City or Village and with the Clerk of the Town in which the land 


is located.  
 
   If the annexation is by one-half approval, or by referendum, the petitioner must post notice of the proposed annexation as 


required by s. 66.0217 (4).  







PETITION FOR ANNEXATION 


The undersigned, constituting 100 percent of the owners of the following described territory located in 
the Town of Dunn, Dane County, Wisconsin, lying contiguous to the City of Stoughton, petition the 
Honorable Mayor and Common Council of said city to annex the territory described below and shown 
upon the attached map, as permitted by Chapter 66 of the Wisconsin Statutes, to the City of Stoughton, 
Dane County, Wisconsin. 


A part of the Southeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 36, Township 6 North, Range 10 East in the 
Town of Dunn, Dane County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows: 


Beginning at the Southeast Corner of said Section 36; Thence S89°59’55”W along the south line of said 
Southeast ¼, 71.72 feet; Thence N18°33’20”E along the west right-of-way of U.S.H. 51 as depicted on 
RW Project 5845-00-21, Sheet 4.4, and the southerly extension thereof, 88.26 feet; Thence N01°23’25”E 
along said west right-of-way of U.S.H. 51, 100.00 feet; Thence N07°08’25”W along said west right-of-
way of U.S.H. 51, 65.77 feet; Thence S89°59’55”W along the north lines of CSM 784, CSM 478, and CSM 
793, 530.70 feet to the northwest corner of CSM 793; Thence S00°00’05”E along the west line of CSM 
793, 248.90 feet to a point on the south line of said Southeast ¼; Thence S89°59’55”W along the south 
line of said Southeast ¼, 481.56 feet to the southeast corner of CSM 684; Thence N01°08’57”E along the 
east line of CSM 684; 500.01 feet to the northeast corner of CSM 684; Thence S89°59’55”W along the 
north line of CSM 684, 246.00 feet to a point on the west line of the Southeast ¼ of said Southeast ¼; 
Thence N01°12’08” along the west line of the Southeast ¼ of said Southeast ¼, 819.49 feet to a point on 
the north line of said Southeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼; Thence S89°41’47”E along the north line of said 
Southeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼, 1312.04 feet to a point on the east line of said Southeast ¼; Thence 
S01°22’47W” along the east line of said Southeast ¼, 1312.61 feet to the Point of Beginning. 


Said parcel contains 1,468,331 square feet or 33.708 acres more or less including areas to the northwest 
of the intersection of U.S.H. 51 and Rutland Dunn Town Line Road. 


There are no persons residing in the territory. 


Dated this 18th day of July 2023 


 


Signed: ________________________ 


Greenbriar Farms Ltd. Partnership 
Sheryl Anderson, _________________ 
754 U.S.H. 51 
Stoughton, WI 53589 







S89°41'47"E 1312.04'


S89°59'55"W 481.56'


N
01


°0
8'


57
"E


50
0.


01
'


S89°59'55"W
246.00'


N
01


°1
2'


08
"E


81
9.


49
'


S0
1°


22
'4


7"
W


13
12


.6
1'


L1


S89°59'55"W 530.70'


S0
0°


00
'0


5"
E


24
8.


90
'


L2
L3


L4


LINE TABLE


LINE


L1


L2


L3


L4


BEARING


S89°59'55"W


N18°33'20"E


N01°23'25"E


N07°08'25"W


LENGTH


71.72'


88.26'


100.00'


65.77'


PLOTTED: Tuesday, June 13, 2023 4:57:05 PM,  FROM: G:\21\21902\21902000\CADD\Survey\West of 51-North of Rutland-Dunn\Annexation\21902000_NW Rutland 51_Annexation.dwg DRAWN BY: Brad Tisdale


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com


GREENBRIAR FARMS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
PROPERTY ANNEXATION


STOUGHTON, WI
ANNEXATION MAP


PARCEL NO. 061036495005


AREA = 1,468,331 SQ FT
OR 33.708 ACRES +/-


TOWN OF RUTLAND


TOWN OF DUNN


LOT 1


CSM 684


LOT 1


CSM 793 LOT 1


CSM 478 LOT 1


CSM 784


PARCEL NO.
061036490000


PARCEL NO.
061036485007


PARCEL NO.
061036480802 PARCEL NO.


061131385022


PARCEL NO.
061131390022


PARCEL NO.
051106288872PARCEL NO.


051001180000
PARCEL NO.


051001181762
CITY OF STOUGHTON


CITY OF STOUGHTON


C
IT


Y 
O


F 
ST


O
U


G
H


TO
N


TO
W


N
 O


F 
D


U
N


N


CITY OF STOUGHTON


TOWN OF DUNN


C
IT


Y 
O


F
ST


O
U


G
H


TO
N


TO
W


N
 O


F 
D


U
N


N


LOT 18
LOT 17


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


LOT 2
51 WEST


LOT 1


N


EW


S


WI
MADISON


0 100 200


SW 1/4 - SW 1/4


SW 1/4 - SE 1/4


SE 1/4 - SE 1/4


NW 1/4 - SE 1/4


NE 1/4 - SE 1/4


NW 1/4 - SW 1/4


SOUTHEAST CORNER
SECTION 36
P.O.B.


SOUTH 1/4
CORNER


SECTION 31


SOUTH 1/4
CORNER
SECTION  36


FILE NO.
21902000
SHEET 1 OF 1


51 WEST
OUTLOT 1


PARCEL NO. 051001182002
PARCEL NO.


051001181212


PARCEL NO.
051001188102


PARCEL NO.
061036498600PARCEL NO.


061036498404
PARCEL NO.


061036498208PARCEL NO.
061036497101


51 WEST


51 WEST
51 WEST


SEC 36, T6N, R10E


SEC 36, T6N, R10E


SEC 36, T6N, R10E


SEC 36, T6N, R10E


SEC 31, T6N, R11E


SEC 31, T6N, R11E


TOWN OF DUNN


EAST 1/4
CORNER
SECTION 36



AutoCAD SHX Text

U.S.H. 51



AutoCAD SHX Text

RUTLAND-DUNN TOWN LINE RD





		13 O-23-2023 Direct annexation of a portion of the Town of Dunn.pdf

		13 O-23-2023 Direct annexation of a portion of the Town of Dunn.pdf

		13 Memo and map.pdf

		13z Annexation payment T-Dunn 2023.pdf



		14602_20230710_review_letter.pdf

		14608 Petitioners Submittal.pdf

		WIDOA Annexation Review Request Form-STI_2023_07_14.pdf

		Petition for Annexation-STI














CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
An ordinance amending the zoning classification at CSM Lot 1 (part of lots 9 and 10, Chalet 


Subdivision) in the City of Stoughton, WI.  


Committee 
Action:    


Plan Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0  


Fiscal Impact:        


File Number: O - 23 - 2023 Date Introduced: 
 


First Reading: July 25, 2023 
Second Reading: August 8, 2023 


 
RECITALS 


 
1. Chalet Court LLC (Todd Nelson) (the “Owner/Applicant”) has requested to change the 


zoning classification of the parcel at CSM Lot 1 (part of lots 9 and 10, Chalet 
Subdivision) from RH – Rural Holding to TR-6 Two Family Residential.     
 


2. The applicant proposes to create one duplex lot for development. 
 
3. On July 10, 2023, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing 


regarding the proposed zoning change.  The public hearing was preceded by the 
publication of a class 2 notice, and other notices required by law.  
 


4. The Plan Commission found that the proposed zoning change is consistent with the City 
of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommends that the zoning change be approved 
as presented.   


 
5. The Common Council has considered the proposed zoning change, the Plan 


Commission’s recommendation and finds that the proposed zoning change is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







ORDINANCE 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 
 


Section 1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance 
as if set forth in full. 


   
Section 2. Subject to the conditions set forth in section 3 below, the zoning classification of 


the parcel at CSM Lot 1 (part of lots 9 and 10, Chalet Subdivision) from RH – Rural Holding to TR-6 
Two Family Residential. 


 
Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect upon publication pursuant to law and after the 


certified survey map is recorded. 
 
 


 
 


Dates 
Council Adopted:    
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Candee Christen, City Clerk  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
 
  
 
 
  
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\CSM Lot 1 Chalet Subdivision Rezoning Ordinance.doc 
 
 
 
 
 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\071023\PC Info\Chalet Court Rezoning Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  July 5, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the July 10, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


meetings of July 25 and August 8, 2023 
 
 
Rezoning of Lot 1, Certified Survey Map (CSM), at the Chalet Subdivision. 
The applicant/owner is seeking to rezone this newly created parcel from RH - Rural Holding to TR-
6 - Two Family Residential.  The intent is to begin construction of a duplex as soon as possible. 
 
The applicant/owner plans to create additional duplex lots along Chalet Drive and has been in 
discussions with the City about creation of parkland at the rear of the Chalet Subdivision. 
 
The application materials and ordinance are provided.   A public hearing and recommendation to 
the Common Council is necessary. 
 
 
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, July 10, 2023 at 
6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a proposed rezoning of 
the property at CSM Lot 1, Chalet Subdivision, part of Lots 9 and 10, City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin, owned by Chalet Court LLC (Todd Nelson).  The property (CSM Lot 1) is proposed 
to be rezoned from RH - Rural Holding to TR-6 – Two Family Residential. 
 
Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  (Virtual 


and In-Person) 


In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 
    321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 
 
Virtual:   You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82765957880?pwd=ZFd4QnlJaklGalduU2ViQWR6cTY5QT09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 827 6595 7880 Passcode: 323926 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-
646-0421.   
 
Additional information including a location map can be found at: 
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
 
     
Published June 22 and 29, 2023 Hub 
 
 
 


 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Rezone Parts of Lots 9 and 10 Chalet Subdivsion.doc 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82765957880?pwd=ZFd4QnlJaklGalduU2ViQWR6cTY5QT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





To the City of Stoughton Planning and Zoning Dept. 
 
The owner wishes to rezone Lot #1 (legal description is attached) to allow for one duplex 
lot.  The property is vacant and currently provides the city with no meaningful value. If anything 
it acts as a dumping ground of rubble.  The addition of a duplex at this location would provide 
much needed affordable housing at an infill location that is absent from any housing 
developments.  In addition there would be a substantial increase in tax base.  The rezoning is 
consistent with the City of Stoughton's master plan.  Commencement of construction would 
begin immediately after final approval from the city. 
 
Restfully submitted. 
 
Todd Nelson 


 























IV. Final Application Packet Information for City Use


Receipt of (8.5'' by 11" text and 11" by 1 7'' graphic electronic


copies of final application packet by Zoning Administrator


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet)


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet)


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk


Class 2 legal notice published on 6/22/23 and 6/29/23


S: \Planning\MPS\Ponns&Pamph!ets \Applications \Zoning Map Amendment APP .doc 


Date: 


Date: 5/23/23 


Date: 7/5/23


Date:6/10/23





		11 O-23-2023 CSM Lot 1 Chalet Subdivision Rezoning Ordinance

		11a Chalet Court Rezoning







